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Michael R. Mushkin, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 2421 
L. Joe Coppedge, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 4954 
MUSHKIN & COPPEDGE 
6070 S. Eastern Avenue, Suite 270 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89128 
Telephone: (702) 454-3333 
Fax: (702) 386-4979 
michael@mushlaw.com 
jcoppedge@mccnvlaw.com 
Attorneys for Dotan Y. Melech, Receiver, 
Shane Terry, and Phillip D. Ivey 

 
DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 

NUVEDA, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; and CWNEVADA LLC, a Nevada 
Limited Liability Company, 
 

Plaintiffs, 
 
v. 
 
4FRONT ADVISORS LLC, foreign limited 
liability company, DOES I through X and 
ROE ENTITIES, II through XX, inclusive, 
 

Defendants. 

 
Case No.: A-17-755479-B 
 
Consolidated With: A-19-791405-C,  
A-19-796300-B, and A-20-817363-B 
 
Dept. No.: 13 
 
 
Hearing Date: December 6, 2021 
Hearing Time: 9:00 a.m. 

 
AND RELATED MATTERS 

 

 
OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO DISMISS AND/OR FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON 

CLAIMS BY SHANE TERRY EXCEPT AGAINST BCP 7 HOLDINGS, LLC AND 
BRIAN PADGETT  

 
Dotan Y. Melech (“Melech” or the “Receiver”), as the Court Appointed Receiver of 

CWNevada, LLC (“CWNevada”), Shane Terry (“Terry”) and Phillip D. Ivey (“Ivey”), by and 

through their attorneys, the law firm of Mushkin & Coppedge, submit the following Opposition 

to NuVeda, LLC’s Motion to Dismiss and/or for Summary Judgment on Claims by Shane Terry 

Except Against BCP 7 Holdings, LLC and Brian Padgett (“Opposition”) filed by the NuVeda 

Defendants. This Opposition is made based on the following Memorandum of Points and 

Case Number: A-17-755479-B

Electronically Filed
11/17/2021 3:29 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT

APPENDIX 237



 

Page 2 of 23 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

Authorities, the Declaration of Shane Terry attached hereto as Exhibit 1, together with the papers 

and pleadings on file herein. 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. Statement of the Case 

Plaintiffs, Shane Terry (“Terry”), together with Dotan Y. Melech, the Court-appointed 

receiver (the “Receiver”) for CWNevada, LLC (“CWNevada”) and Phillip D. Ivey (“Ivey”, 

collectively, Terry, the Receiver, and Ivey are referred to as “Plaintiffs”) filed their initial 

Complaint on June 30, 2020, as Case No. A-20-817363-B. The initial Complaint included nine 

(9) claims for relief asserted by Terry, including the following:  

• The First Claim for Relief (by all Plaintiffs) against all Defendants for Declaratory 

Relief included requested relief specific to Terry that (i) the Terry Purchase Agreement is 

null and void resulting from a fraud in the inducement and for a complete failure of 

consideration, (ii) the Terry Interest was never transferred to BCP 7 or any other entity, 

and (iii) Terry is the sole and only owner of the Terry Interest; 

• The Fourth Claim for Relief (by Terry only) for Rescission of the Terry Purchase 

Agreement for Fraud in the Inducement and/or Failure of Consideration against 

Defendants BCP 7 and Padgett only; 

• The Fifth Claim for Relief (by Terry only) in the alternative for Breach of Contract 

against Defendants BCP 7 and Padgett only; 

• The Sixth Claim for Relief (by Terry only) in the alternative for Breach of the 

Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing against Defendants BCP 7 and Padgett only; 

• The Ninth Claim for Relief (by all Plaintiffs) for Unjust Enrichment against 

Defendants NuVeda, Bady, Mohajer and Kennedy, specifically as to Terry, the claim for 

unjust enrichment relates to the transfer of the Terry Interest to Bady and Mohajer without 

Terry’s knowledge or consent; 

• The Tenth Claim for Relief (by all Plaintiffs) for an accounting against Defendants 

NuVeda, Bady, Mohajer and Kennedy; 

• The Eleventh Claim for Relief (by all Plaintiffs) for Violation of NRS 225.084 

APPENDIX 238



 

Page 3 of 23 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

against Defendants NuVeda, Bady, Mohajer and Kennedy; 

• The Thirteenth Claim for Relief (all Plaintiffs) for Injunctive Relief against all 

Defendants; and  

• The Fourteenth Claim for Relief (by all Plaintiffs) for the Appointment of a 

Receiver against all Defendants.  

Only the First, Ninth, Tenth, Eleventh, Thirteenth, and Fourteenth claims for relief 

included claims by Terry against the NuVeda Defendants, and none are solely claims for relief 

asserted by Terry against NuVeda. After NuVeda filed multiple motions to dismiss, Plaintiffs 

filed a motion to consolidate several related actions with the Receivership Action.  Included 

among the cases to be consolidated is the complaint in Case No. A-19-796300-B, which is a 

complaint filed by NuVeda’s current counsel, Mitchell Stipp, on behalf of Terry during a time 

when Mr. Stipp represented Terry. The Complaint filed by Mr. Stipp (the “Stipp Complaint”) was 

filed on June 7, 2019 against Defendants, BCP 7, LLC and Brian Padgett and included claims for 

breach of contract, unjust enrichment, and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair 

dealing. Notably, the Stipp Complaint neglected to include a claim for rescission of the Terry 

Purchase Agreement. The district court granted the motion to consolidate following a hearing on 

July 23, 2020. NuVeda’s motion to dismiss concerning the Receiver’s and Terry’s claims came 

before the Receivership Court for a hearing on August 31, 2020. The Court denied NuVeda’s 

motion to dismiss with respect to the Receiver’s claims.  

However, with respect to Terry’s claims, the Court stayed the motion “for a period of 

ninety (90) days from the date of the hearing for Mr. Terry to request any relief from the arbitrator, 

Ms. Nikki Baker, of the American Arbitration Association.” Terry submitted a Motion to Set 

Aside Dismissal on Monday, November 30, 2020 in the matter proceeding before the American 

Arbitration Association (“AAA”). The AAA responded that the matter was “closed on March 20, 

2019, and the Association no longer has jurisdiction regarding this matter.”  

On December 9, 2020, NuVeda filed a Motion to Enter Order on Shane Terry’s Claims 

and Related Relief, it’s second attempt regarding Mr. Terry’s claims for relief.  NuVeda 

specifically requested relief, “as set forth in NuVeda’s motion to dismiss or for summary 
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judgment, the case initiated by Mr. Terry against NuVeda and its affiliates should be dismissed 

or summary judgment entered.” See NuVeda’s Motion to Enter Order filed herein. Following a 

hearing on January 25, 2021, Judge Gonzalez instructed Plaintiffs to provide the Court with a 

copy of the motion submitted to AAA.  After reviewing that motion, Judge Gonzalez entered the 

following Court Minutes on February 1, 2021: 

The Court, having reviewed Motion related to Shane Terry’s claims and the related 
briefing, and being fully informed, DENIES the motion WITHOUT PREJUDICE. 
The determination by AAA not to act with respect to Terry’s request places this 
Court in the position of making a determination on the motion attached as Exhibit 
4 to the supplemental declaration. Based upon the allegations that have been made 
the Court is considering setting an evidentiary hearing in the rescission issue raised 
in the motion… 
 
After having its motion for an order to enter judgment on Shane Terry’s claims denied, 

NuVeda filed its Motion to Stay on Order Shortening Time so it could file a writ with the Nevada 

Supreme Court. Based on the briefing and argument by counsel, in which NuVeda acknowledged 

the existence of factual issues, Judge Gonzalez “reconsidered [her] prior decision to set an 

evidentiary hearing on the issue of rescission (because there are factual issues to be resolved at 

trial.” NuVeda’s writ to the Nevada Supreme Court regarding Terry’s claims followed. That writ 

petition remains pending.  

On October 18, 2021, Plaintiffs filed their Second Amended Complaint, which included 

three additional claims by Terry: 

• The Twentieth Claim for Relief for Conversion by Terry against the NuVeda 

Defendants,  

• The Twenty-First Claim for Relief for Unjust Enrichment by Terry against the 

NuVeda Defendants, and  

• The Twenty-Second Claim for Relief for Civil Conspiracy by Terry against the 

NuVeda Defendants and Padgett. 
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II. Statement of Facts1 

1. On or about July 9, 2014, Terry entered into an Operating Agreement for NuVeda, 

LLC (the “NuVeda Operating Agreement”) with Pejman Bady (“Bady”), Pouya Mohajer 

(“Mohajer”) and Jennifer Goldstein (“Goldstein”) to apply for and operate marijuana dispensaries, 

cultivation, and processing facilities for medical marijuana pursuant to licenses obtained from 

certain governmental divisions. Second Amended Complaint (the “Complaint”), ⁋ 22; Terry 

Declaration, ⁋ 3; NuVeda Operating Agreement. 

2. The NuVeda Operating Agreement was also signed by Joseph Kennedy, John 

Penders and Ryan Winmill. Complaint, ⁋ 23; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 4. 

3. Since NuVeda’s formation, Terry has been a manager, voting member and at 

times, NuVeda’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operations Officer. Complaint, ⁋24; Terry 

Declaration, ⁋ 7. 

4. Initially, Terry owned 21.5% of NuVeda and its subsidiaries, Clark NMSD, LLC 

(“Clark NMSD”), a Nevada limited liability company, Clark natural Medicinal Solutions, LLC 

(“Clark Natural”), a Nevada limited liability company, and Nye Natural Medicinal Solutions, 

LLC (“Nye Natural”), a Nevada limited liability company (the “Terry Interest”). The Terry 

Interest was later increased to 22.88%. Complaint, ⁋ 27; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 8. 

5. During the month of December 2015, NuVeda’s annual license renewal paperwork 

was due to the State of Nevada. Complaint, ⁋ 40; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 9. 

6. During this time, Terry was NuVeda’s designated and registered point of contact 

with the State of Nevada for all regulatory correspondence. Complaint, ⁋ 41; Terry Declaration, 

⁋ 10. 

7. However, NuVeda removed Terry as NuVeda’s State of Nevada designated point 

 
1 NRCP 56(c)(4) requires that affidavits or declarations in support of a motion for summary 
judgment “be made on personal knowledge, set out facts that would be admissible in evidence, 
and show that the affiant or declarant is competent to testify on the matters stated.” The 
Declarations of Pejman Bady, Pouya Mohajer and Joseph Kennedy fail to comply with the 
requirements of NRCP 56(c)(4), fail to set forth specific facts that would be admissible in 
evidence, and as to the amount that Terry allegedly collected from Padgett, are based on non-
admissible hearsay information and belief.  Accordingly, the declarations should be stricken and 
not considered by this Court. 
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of contact and refused to provide Terry with access to any records. Terry Declaration, ⁋ 11. 

Acts of Self-Dealing and other Misconduct 

8. Bady, Mohajer and Kennedy, individually and at times through NuVeda or other 

entities, engaged in fraudulent acts of self-dealing and other acts of misconduct. Complaint, ⁋ 48; 

Terry Declaration, ⁋ 12. 

9. For instance, Terry and other members of NuVeda learned that Bady 

misrepresented the source of funds he originally contributed to NuVeda in exchange for equity. 

Complaint, ⁋ 49; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 13. 

10. While Bady averred that his funding came from the sale of a business, upon 

information and belief, Bady, in concert with Mohajer, in fact funded his contributions from 

money he acquired from his friend, Majid Golpa (“Golpa”). Complaint, ⁋ 51; Terry Declaration, 

⁋ 15. 

11. Upon information and belief, Bady and Mohajer then promised that in exchange 

for the funds, Golpa would receive a 5.5% membership interest in NuVeda, a pledge that was 

prohibited by Nevada law. Complaint, ⁋ 52; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 16. 

12. Mohsen Bahri (“Bahri”) and Bady also negotiated the terms of a $500,000 

promissory note. Complaint, ⁋ 53; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 17. 

13. Bady then made an undisclosed deal with Bahri to provide Bady with a $500,000 

investment in which Bahri would receive a 4% interest in NuVeda. Complaint, ⁋ 53; Terry 

Declaration, ⁋ 18. 

14. Following discovery of the true nature of Bady and Mohajer’s wrongful side deals 

with third parties, a dispute arose between Terry and Goldstein on the one hand and Bady and 

Mohajer on the other hand regarding Defendants’ clandestine and wrongful side deals, pursuant 

to which Bady and Mohajer attempted to allocate ownership interests to their friends, and the true 

source of Bady’s capital contribution, Golpa and Bahri. Complaint, ⁋ 54; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 20. 

15. Bady and Mohajer were not authorized to pledge to Golpa or Bahri a 5.5% or 4% 

interest in NuVeda, yet Bady demanded that the members, including Terry and Goldstein, agree 

to ratify his apparent promises to provide such interest to Golpa and Bahri. Complaint, ⁋ 56; Terry 
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Declaration, ⁋ 21. 

16. Upon information and belief, the transfer of the interests, as proposed by Bady, 

jeopardized NuVeda’s licenses. Complaint, ⁋ 57; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 22. 

17. On or about November 1, 2015, a monthly payment was due to Bahri on the 

$500,000 promissory note. Complaint, ⁋ 58; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 23. 

18. Bady, a long-time personal friend with Bahri, instructed Terry to not pay the 

monthly payment and stated he “would take care of it.” Complaint, ⁋ 59; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 24. 

19. On November 11, 2015, Bahri sent demand for the November 1, 2015 payment. 

Complaint, ⁋ 60; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 25. 

20. Bady admitted he did not make the monthly payment, but that he and Bahri had 

agreed to extend the monthly payment to November 15, 2015. Complaint, ⁋ 60; Terry Declaration, 

⁋ 26. 

21. Bady’s non-payment of the Bahri loan and subsequent negotiations were done 

without Terry’s knowledge and jeopardized NuVeda’s operations. Complaint, ⁋ 61; Terry 

Declaration, ⁋ 27. 

22. Bahri subsequently presented a lawsuit against Terry and Goldstein, individually, 

falsely alleging that they were liable for his investment through Bady. Complaint, ⁋ 62; Terry 

Declaration, ⁋ 28. 

23. Bady and Bahri then acted in concert to allege that Goldstein and Terry were liable 

for the $500,000 promissory note, as neither NuVeda nor Bady, who single-handedly 

communicated with Bahri and who negotiated all terms of the clandestine deal with his friend 

Bahri, were named as defendants. Complaint, ⁋ 63; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 29. 

24. Bady and Bahri acted in concert to paralyze Terry and Goldstein from obtaining 

the necessary funding by threatening to file frivolous and factually unfounded lawsuits against 

Terry and Goldstein for Bady’s strategic gain. Complaint, ⁋ 64; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 30. 

25. Additionally, when Kennedy (an IRS enrolled agent) was preparing NuVeda’s K-

1s, Bady asked Terry to allocate his tax losses to Bady to offset Bady’s income from an unrelated 

medical business. Complaint, ⁋65; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 31. 
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26. Terry refused and explained to Bady that loss-shifting was wrongful and 

potentially constituted fraud, but Bady ignored Terry’s concern and collaborated with Mohajer to 

shift Mohajer’s losses to him instead. Complaint, ⁋ 66; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 32. 

27. Bady and Mohajer then had nominal-member Kennedy amend the K-1s to reflect 

the loss-shifting to Bady in violation of the terms of the NuVeda Operating Agreement without 

notifying any other NuVeda members. Complaint, ⁋ 67; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 33. 

28. Goldstein and Terry made demands for the original K-1s and other financial 

documents for NuVeda, but Bady and Kennedy denied the records request in violation of Terry’s 

right to review the business records of NuVeda pursuant to Section 7.2 of the NuVeda Operating 

Agreement. Complaint, ⁋ 68; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 34. 

29. It was also discovered that Bady engaged in self-dealing on multiple occasions. 

An entity known as 2 Prime, LLC (“2 Prime”) entered into a financing agreement with NuVeda. 

Complaint, ⁋ 69; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 35-36. 

30. Bady exclusively negotiated the agreement with favorable terms to 2 Prime. 

Thereafter, it was discovered after the fact that Bady had an undisclosed 50% interest in 2 Prime, 

which was also co-owned by Golpa. Complaint, ⁋ 70; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 37-38. 

31. On or about November 20, 2015, under the guidance of NuVeda’s corporate 

counsel, who was hired directly by Bady, Bady’s and Mohajer’s NuVeda interests were 

terminated pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Operating Agreement. Complaint, ⁋ 71; Terry 

Declaration, ⁋ 39. 

32. However, Bady and Mohajer disregarded the expulsion and claimed they remained 

voting members, managers, and officers with authority to act on behalf of NuVeda. Complaint, ⁋ 

72; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 40. 

33. Between November 20th, 2015, and December 3, 2015, Bady and Mohajer, acting 

as purported representatives of NuVeda, attempted to sell NuVeda’s interests in its highly 

valuable and privileged licenses to multiple parties, including Padgett’s company, CWNevada. 

Complaint, ⁋ 73; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 41. 
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The District Court Action 

34. Over concerns that any attempted and unauthorized transfer of interest could 

jeopardize NuVeda’s licenses, on December 3, 2015, Goldstein and Terry filed a complaint, as 

individuals and on behalf of NuVeda in the District Court for Clark County, Nevada against Bady 

and Mohajer as Case Number A-15-728510-B (the “District Court Action”) and 

contemporaneously filed a Motion for a Preliminary Injunction requesting that the Court enjoin 

any transfer of NuVeda’s membership interests. Complaint, ⁋ 74; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 42. 

35. The District Court Action sought, among other things, the issuance of a 

preliminary and permanent injunction maintaining the status quo pending a final resolution of the 

parties’ disputes in an arbitral proceeding. Complaint, ⁋ 75; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 43. NuVeda 

acknowledges that the District Court Action was an attempt “to stop the potential joint venture 

between [CWNevada] and NuVeda” and that the District Court Action “was referred to [AAA] 

for binding arbitration.” Writ, p. 6. 

36. Although the district court did not issue a preliminary injunction in the District 

Court Action, on January 13, 2016, the Court ordered (the “January 13, 2016 Order”), among 

other things, “IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that pending the 

completion of the contemplated arbitration, the parties are to take no further action to expulse 

each other on the factual bases presented to the Court during the evidentiary hearing.” Complaint, 

⁋ 76, Terry Declaration, ⁋ 44. 

37. Goldstein and Terry commenced a private arbitration proceeding with the 

American Arbitration Association against NuVeda, Bady and Mohajer captioned as Terry, et al. 

v. NuVeda LLC, et al., AAA Case No. 01-15-005-8574 (the “Arbitration”). Complaint, ⁋ 77; Terry 

Declaration, ⁋ 45. 

38. Notwithstanding the express language of the January 13, 2016 Order, in a March 

10, 2016 meeting attended by Terry, Bady called for a vote to expel Terry from NuVeda. 

Complaint, ⁋ 78; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 46. 

39. Bady, Mohajer and Kennedy voted in favor of the motion to expel Terry in 

violation of the January 13, 2016 Order. Complaint, ⁋ 79; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 47. 
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40. The purported expulsion was further documented in a meeting on or about 

September 19, 2017, where the NuVeda Meeting Minutes indicate the Terry Interest was 

distributed to Bady and Mohajer in yet another act of blatant self-dealing. Complaint, ⁋ 80; Terry 

Declaration, ⁋ 48. 

41. NuVeda, Bady and Mohajer transferred the Terry Interest in NuVeda directly to 

Bady and Mohajer without Terry’s consent. Complaint, ⁋ 81-82; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 49. Terry 

learned of the transfer of the Terry Interest in NuVeda to Bady and Mohajer after January 2019. 

Terry Declaration, ⁋ 49. 

Purchase and Sale Agreement for Terry’s Ownership Interest in NuVeda and 

NuVeda-Managed Licenses 

42. During the pendency of the District Court Action and Arbitration, on or about April 

30, 2018, Terry entered into a “Purchase and Sale Agreement for Terry’s Ownership Interest in 

NuVeda and NuVeda-Managed Licenses” (the “Terry Purchase Agreement”) with BCP 7 as the 

Buyer and Padgett as guarantor. Terry Declaration, ⁋⁋ 50, 51; Complaint, ⁋⁋ 103-104; Terry 

Purchase Agreement, Ex. 4. 

43. The Terry Purchase Agreement provides, among other things, that Terry agreed to 

sell the Terry Interest and BCP 7 agreed to purchase the Terry Interest for specified consideration 

and on specific terms. Complaint, ⁋ 105; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 52. 

44. The total purchase price for BCP 7 to acquire the Terry Interest was $1.75 million 

(the “Purchase Price”), which was “substantially reduced” from fair market value. Complaint, ⁋ 

106; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 53. 

45. Terry was induced to sign the Terry Purchase Agreement in reliance upon 

Padgett’s representations that the Purchase Price would be paid. Terry Declaration, ⁋ 54. 

46. The Purchase Price was payable as follows: (i) an initial payment of $500,000.00 

in good and payable U.S. funds to be paid to Terry on or before June 15, 2018 (the “Initial 

Payment”), and (ii) monthly payments of the $1.25 million balance due on or before June 15, 

2018 with payments due monthly until paid in full (the “Monthly Payments”).  Complaint, ⁋ 107; 

Terry Declaration, ⁋ 55. 
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47. The Monthly Payments were to be made on or before the first day of the month in 

an amount not less than the interest accrued on the outstanding balance at an interest rate of 18%. 

Complaint, ⁋ 108; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 56.  

48. The Monthly Payments were to commence May 1, 2018, and the first payment was 

to have been made no later than May 2, 2018. Complaint, ⁋ 109; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 57. 

49. The Terry Purchase Agreement further provided that there shall be acceleration of 

the outstanding balance and any unpaid accrued interest thereon upon (1) the sale or transfer of 

the Terry Interest to a vehicle not owned by BCP 7, or any beneficial rights thereunder, from BCP 

7 to a third party (other than CWNV, LLC); or (2) a default of a payment obligations, which shall 

result from any failure to timely pay the Initial Down Payment or any Monthly Payments on the 

Balance following notice of failure to Padgett and no cure within 10 business days thereof. 

Complaint, ⁋ 110; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 58. 

50. Upon execution of the Terry Purchase Agreement and upon receipt of the first 

Monthly Payment, Terry agreed, among other things, to assign any and all claims and right in the 

Arbitration and District Court Action to BCP 7. Complaint, ⁋ 111; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 59. 

51. BCP 7 made a partial payment toward the Initial Payment in the sum of 

$250,000.00 on or about August 1, 2018. Complaint, ⁋ 112; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 60. 

52. In addition to the partial Initial Payment, BCP 7 made partial interest and extension 

payments. Complaint, ⁋ 113; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 61. Terry disputes that he received the sum of 

$757,757.00 from BCP 7 and/or Padgett as represented by NuVeda. 

53. However, BCP 7 failed to pay the Initial Payment or Monthly Payments in full. 

Complaint, ⁋ 114; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 62. 

54. As a result of BCP 7’s failure to pay the Initial Payment or any of the Monthly 

Payments in full, Terry provided notice of and right to cure this failure to BCP 7 and Padgett. 

Complaint, ⁋ 115; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 63. 

55. BCP 7 and Padgett failed to cure the outstanding balance owed following notice 

of such failure and a right to cure within 10 business days. Complaint, ⁋ 116; Terry Declaration, 

⁋ 64. 
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56. As a result of BCP 7’s and Padgett’s failure to pay the Initial Payment and Monthly 

Payments in full, including the first Monthly Payment, there has not been a valid transfer of the 

Terry Interest to BCP 7. Complaint, ⁋ 117; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 65. 

57. Notwithstanding the fact that the Terry Interest was never properly transferred to 

BCP 7, in an email dated June 5, 2018 from Padgett to the Arbitrator in the Arbitration, Padgett 

purported to dismiss “all claims of myself, CWNevada, BCP Holdings 7, LLC and Shane Terry 

(all right, title, and interest against Bady, Mohajer, and NuVeda and its subsidiaries (Clark 

NMSD, Clark Natural Medicinal Solutions, and Nye Natural Medicinal Solutions) with 

prejudice.” Complaint, ⁋ 118; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 66; Electronic mail from Padgett to Nikki 

Baker, Ex. 5. 

58. Ms. Baker then proceeded to dismiss the arbitration as to BCP Holding 7, LLC. 

See electronic mail dated October 9, 2018. AAA then confirmed that BCP 7, LLC was dismissed 

as a party. See letter from AAA dated October 9, 2018. 

59. Not only did CWNevada never make or assert any claims related to the Arbitration, 

the Padgett email clearly evidences a conspiracy between Padgett, NuVeda, Bady and Mohajer to 

defraud Terry by having BCP 7 purportedly purchase the Terry Interest, and then immediately 

attempt to dismiss the claims in the Arbitration without BCP 7 and Padgett paying the agreed 

consideration. Complaint, ⁋ 119; Terry Declaration, ⁋ 67. 

III. Argument 

A. Legal Standard 

1. Standard of Review 

The NuVeda Defendants seek dismissal and/or summary judgment of all of Terry’s claims 

against the NuVeda Defendants. To the extent NuVeda seeks dismissal for “failure to state a claim 

upon which relief can be granted”, the motion must be denied. This Nevada Supreme Court has 

long held: 

The standard of review for a dismissal under subsection b(5) is rigorous, as 
the court must construe the pleadings liberally and draw ever fair inference 
in favor of the non moving party. 

.   .   . 
A complaint will not be dismissed for failure to state a claim unless it 
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appears beyond a doubt that the plaintiff could prove no set of facts which, 
if accepted by the trier of fact would entitle him or her to relief. 

 
Simpson v. Mars Inc., 113 Nev. 188, 929 P.2d 966 (1997). 

In addition, in Hynds Plumbing & Heating Co. v. Clark County Sch. Dist., 94 Nev. 776, 

587 P.2d 1331 (1978), this Court held, “[w]hen tested by a subdivision (b)(5) motion to dismiss 

for failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted, the allegations of the complaint must 

be accepted as true.” Further, the Nevada Supreme Court clearly stated, “[t]he appropriate 

standard for a motion to dismiss based on a failure to state a claim is ‘beyond a doubt’ and not 

‘beyond a reasonable doubt.’” Buzz Stew, LLC v. City of N. Las Vegas, 124 Nev. 224, 228 n.6, 

181 P.3d 670, 672 n.6 (2008). 

In the alternative, although NuVeda has never presented a concise statement of undisputed 

facts properly supported by admissible evidence, NuVeda seeks summary judgment on all of 

Terry’s claims for relief against the NuVeda Defendants.  Should this Court treat the NuVeda  

Defendants’ motion as one for summary judgment, before granting a motion for summary 

judgment, NRCP 56 requires there be no genuine issue of material fact. Wood v. Safeway, Inc., 

121 Nev. 724, 732, 121 P.3d 1026, 1031 (2005). 

While the pleadings and other proof must be construed in a light most 
favorable to the nonmoving party, that party bears the burden to “do more 
than simply show that there is some metaphysical doubt” as to the operative 
facts in order to avoid summary judgment being entered in the moving 
party’s favor. The nonmoving party “must, by affidavit or otherwise, set 
forth specific facts demonstrating the existence of a genuine issue for trial 
or have summary judgment entered against him.” Id. 
 

NuVeda has admitted multiple times that there are issues of fact which prevent summary 

judgment on the issue of contract rescission. Moreover, NuVeda has repeatedly acknowledged 

that a party must rescind a contract within a reasonable time, and what constitutes a reasonable 

time depends upon the facts of a particular case to be determined by the trier of fact. Terry has 

more than established issues of material fact concerning all of his claims for relief. As such, the 

motion to dismiss and/or for summary judgment must be denied. 
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2. The NuVeda Operating Agreement 

The NuVeda Defendants argue that somehow the dismissal of the AAA case precludes 

proceedings before this Court.  The express terms of the NuVeda Operating Agreement provide 

otherwise.  The NuVeda Operating Agreement provides in part: 

 
11.3 Arbitration Arbitration proceedings shall be conducted under the 
Rules of Commercial Arbitration of the AAA (the “Rules”). 

.     .     . 
To the extent any provisions of the Rules conflict with any provision of 
this Section, the provisions of this section shall control. 
 

 .     .     .  
The arbitrator shall have all powers of law and equity, which it can 
lawfully assume, necessary to resolve the issues in dispute including, 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, making awards of 
compensatory damages, issuing both prohibitory and mandatory orders 
in the nature of injunctions and compelling the production of documents 
and witnesses for presentation at the arbitration hearings on the merits of 
the case…The statutory, case law and common law of the State of 
Nevada shall govern in interpreting their respective rights, obligations 
and liabilities arising out of or related to the transactions provided for or 
contemplated by this Agreement, including without limitation, the 
validity, construction and performance of all or any portion of this 
Agreement, and the applicable remedy for any liability established 
thereunder, and the amount or method of computation of damages which 
may be awarded, but such governing law shall not include the law 
pertaining to conflicts or choice of laws of Nevada; provided however, 
that should the parties refer a dispute arising out of or in connection with 
an ancillary agreement or an agreement between some or all of the 
Members which specifically references this Article, then the statutory, 
case law and common law of the State whose law governs such 
agreement (except the law pertaining to conflicts or choice of law) shall 
govern in interpreting the respective rights, obligations and liabilities of 
the parties arising out of or related to the transactions provided for or 
contemplated by such agreement, including without limitation, the 
validity,  
 
construction and performance of all or any portion of such agreement, 
and the applicable remedy for any liability established thereunder, and 
the amount or method of computation of damages which may be 
awarded. 
 
Any action or proceeding subsequent to any award rendered by the 
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arbitrator in the Member Dispute, including but not limited to, any 
action to confirm, vacate, modify, challenge or enforce the 
arbitrator’s decision or award shall be filed in a court of competent 
jurisdiction in the same county were the arbitration of the Member 
dispute was conducted, and Nevada law shall apply in any such 
subsequent action or proceeding. (emphasis added). 

 
See NuVeda Operating Agreement, pp. 18-19. 

As set forth above, AAA no longer has jurisdiction over the Arbitration and that matter 

was closed on March 20, 2019. The NuVeda Operating Agreement specifically provides that any 

post Arbitration proceedings be filed with this Court. Thus, the district court, as Judge Gonzalez 

acknowledged in her Court Minutes, is the proper place to bring Terry’s claim for rescission and 

ultimately, any related claims, such as that for declaratory relief regarding entitlement to the Terry 

Interest. 

B. The Terry Purchase Agreement should be rescinded for fraud in the 

inducement and failure of consideration. 

Although Terry’s claim for rescission is only against BCP 7 and Padgett, NuVeda 

inexplicably raises issues regarding the Terry Interest and his ability to pursue certain clams for 

relief. “Rescission is an equitable remedy which totally abrogates a contract, and which seeks to 

place the parties in the position they occupied prior to executing the contract.” Bergstrom v. Estate 

of DeVoe, 109 Nev. 575, 577, 854 P.2d 860, 861 (1993). A party to a contract may seek rescission 

of that contract based upon fraud in the inducement or a failure of consideration. Awada v. Shuffle 

Master, Inc. 123 Nev. 613, 621, 173 P.2d 707, 713 (2007); Sprouse v. Wentz, 105 Nev. 597, 601, 

781 P.2d 1136, ___ (1989). To establish fraud in the inducement of a contract, a party must prove 

that the other party made a false representation that was material to the transaction. Awada, 123 

Nev. at 621. To establish a failure of consideration, a party must demonstrate he failed to receive 

his bargained for consideration. Sprouse, 105 Nev. at 601.  

When a contract has been partially performed, and one of the parties defaults, the other 

has a choice of remedies. He may rescind or affirm the contract, but he cannot do both. If he 

rescinds, he must return whatever of value he received under it and he may recover back whatever 

he has paid. He cannot at the same time affirm the contract by retaining its benefits and rescind it 
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by repudiating its burdens. Bergstrom, 109 Nev. at 577, citing 5 Arthur Linton Corbin, CORBIN 

on Contracts § 1114 (1964) (emphasis in original). “Further, there can be no partial rescission; a 

contract is either valid or void in toto.’ Bergstrom, 109 Nev. at 577. quoting, Holden v. Dubois, 

665 P.2d 1175 (Okla. 1983). “Because a rescinded contract is void ab initio, following a lawful 

rescission the ‘injured’ party is precluded from recovering damages for breach just as though the 

contract had never been entered into by the parties.” Bergstrom, 109 Nev. at 577-78. Upon 

rescission, the parties should be returned as closely as possible to their respective positions prior 

to entering into the contract. Bergstrom, 109 Nev. at 578. Therefore, it is clear that should the 

Terry Purchase Agreement be rescinded, Terry should be returned to the same position he held 

before entering that contract. 

Here, the facts are not in dispute that Padgett fraudulently induced Terry to sign the Terry 

Purchase Agreement and after submitting the dismissal in the Arbitration, Padgett failed to pay 

the agreed consideration. In these circumstances, where Terry was fraudulently induced to sign 

the Terry Purchase Agreement and where he did not receive his bargained for consideration, 

rescission is proper if that is the remedy Terry chooses. It follows that if Terry is successful on 

this claim for rescission, then he will also be successful on his claim for declaratory relief finding 

he is the rightful owner of the Terry Interest. 

C. Terry’s Claims for Relief in the action below are distinctly different from 

those in the Arbitration. 

NuVeda has repeatedly acknowledged that the District Court Action and related 

Arbitration was an attempt “to stop the potential joint venture between [CWNevada] and 

NuVeda.” See Writ Petition filed with the Supreme Court, p. 6.  “[F]or claim preclusion to apply 

the following factors must be met: (1) the same parties or their privies are involved in both cases, 

(2) a valid final judgment has been entered, and (3) the subsequent action is based on the same 

claims or any part of them that were or could have been brought in the first case.” Five Star 

Capital Corp. v. Ruby, 124 Nev. 1048, 1056-1057, 194 P.3d 709, ___ (2008). First, there was no 

judgment in the Arbitration regarding Terry Interest.  The Arbitration was dismissed by Padgett.  

Further, Terry’s claims in this action generally involve his efforts to rightfully regain his interest 
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in NuVeda and its subsidiaries after entering the Terry Purchase Agreement. In the alternative, 

Terry’s claims in this action include damage claims related to non-payment under the Terry 

Purchase Agreement.  None of Terry’s claims involve an effort to stop the joint venture between 

CWNevada and NuVeda.  In fact, Terry’s claim for rescission, and the related claim for 

declaratory relief could not have been a part of the District Court Action or Arbitration as those 

claims did not even exist at that time. Moreover, it was only necessary to seek to set aside the 

dismissal in the Arbitration because the district court initially directed Terry back to AAA to 

request relief from the arbitrator. Because the Arbitration is closed and AAA no longer has 

jurisdiction, it is appropriate that the district court hear all issues related to Terry’s claims for 

relief. 

Regardless, for what is now the fourth time, NuVeda seeks to have Terry’s claims for 

relief in the action dismissed against the NuVeda Defendants only. Certain dates are relevant to 

the analysis. Although AAA dismissed BCP 7 as a party on October 9, 2018, the AAA matter was 

not closed until March 20, 2019. Again, during a time when he represented Terry, Mr. Stipp filed 

the Stipp Complaint less than three (3) months later on June 7, 2019 but did not include a claim 

for rescission of the Terry Purchase Agreement or seek to set aside the dismissal in the Arbitration. 

Now, NuVeda seeks to use that neglect against Terry.   

As set forth above, a rescinded contract in void ab initio. It logically follows that if the 

Terry Purchase Agreement is void, then the dismissal entered in the Arbitration, based solely on 

the electronic mail proffered by Mr. Padgett, is equally void. Upon rescission, the Terry Interest 

should be returned to Terry. While Terry does not believe it is necessary to set aside a dismissal 

in the Arbitration that is unrelated to his current claims for relief, to the extent it is, the analysis 

is properly under NRCP 60(b)(4). 

NRCP 60(b) provides in part: 

(b)  Grounds for Relief from a Final Judgment, Order, or Proceeding.  
On motion and just terms, the court may relieve a party or its legal 
representative from a final judgment, order, or proceeding for the 
following reasons: 

(1) mistake, inadvertence, surprise, or excusable neglect; 
(2) newly discovered evidence that, with reasonable diligence, could 
not have been discovered in time to move for a new trial under Rule 
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59(b); 
(3) fraud (whether previously called intrinsic or extrinsic), 
misrepresentation, or misconduct by an opposing party; 
(4)  the judgment is void; 
(5) the judgment has been satisfied, released, or discharged; it is 
based on an earlier judgment that has been reversed or vacated; or 
applying it prospectively is no longer equitable; or 
(6)  any other reason that justifies relief. 

 

Rule 60(b)(4) allows a court to set aside a judgment, in this case the AAA dismissal, when 

it is void. LN Mgmt. LLC Services 440 Sarment v. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., 2018 Nev. App. 

Unpub. LEXIS 768 (Nev. App. 2018). This rule, which is a remedial in nature, is to be construed 

liberally to relieve the harshness of rigid form by applying the flexibility of discretion. La-Tex 

Partnership v. Deters, 111 Nev. 471, 893 P.2d 361 (1995).  

Importantly, as it concerns NuVeda’s Writ, the six (6) months timing requirement under 

NRCP 60(c)(1) does not apply to void judgments. In Teriano v. Nev. State Bank (In re Harrison 

Living Trust), 121 Nev. 217, 112 P.3d 1058 (2005), this Court recognized that judgments, once 

found to be void, should generally be set aside. This Court further recognized that NRCP 60(b) 

specifically provides that motions to challenge orders as void must be made within a reasonable 

time. Whether a motion to a Rule 60(b)(4) motion is brought within a reasonable time is a matter 

addressed to the trial court’s sound discretion. Id. At 1062. Therefore, under the circumstances of 

this case, where the dismissal in the Arbitration was submitted as a result of a void agreement, 

such dismissal should be set aside if necessary. 

D. NuVeda’s previous motions to dismiss and/or for summary judgment were 

denied as to the Terry Claims in the original complaint. 

With the exception of the new claims for relief, NuVeda’s previous motions to dismiss 

and/or for summary judgment addressed the First (for Declaratory Judgment), Ninth (Unjust 

Enrichment), Tenth (Accounting), Eleventh (Violation of NRS 225.084), Thirteenth (Injunctive 

Relief), and Fourteenth (Appointment of Receiver) claims for relief asserted by Terry, and were 

denied by Judge Gonzalez. As a result of that denial, NuVeda filed a writ petition with the Nevada 

Supreme Court that remains pending.  Notwithstanding the fact that NuVeda’s previous motions 
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were denied, and there is a writ petition pending, the NuVeda Defendants apparently seek another 

bite at the apple.  This motion fails too.  

Article XI of the NuVeda Operating Agreement concerns dispute resolution among 

NuVeda’s members and provides in part: 

11.1 Disputes Among Members. The Members agree that in the event 
of any dispute or disagreement solely between or among any of them 
arising out of, relating to or in connection with this Agreement or the 
Company or its organization, formation, business or management 
(“Member Dispute”), the Members shall use their best efforts to resolve 
any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Agreement by good-
faith negotiation and mutual agreement. The Members shall meet at a 
mutually convenient time and place to attempt to resolve any such 
dispute. 
 
However, in the event that the Members are unable to resolve any 
Member Dispute, such parties shall first attempt to settle such dispute 
through a non-binding mediation proceeding. In the event any party to 
such mediation proceeding is not satisfied with the results thereof, then 
any unresolved disputes shall be finally settled in according with an 
arbitration proceeding. In no event shall the results of any mediation 
proceeding be admissible in any arbitration or judicial proceeding. 

 
See NuVeda Operating Agreement, p. 18. 

The First Claim for Relief includes a claim for relief by Terry against all Defendants for 

Declaratory Relief that (i) the Terry Purchase Agreement is null and void resulting from a fraud 

in the inducement and for a complete failure of consideration, (ii) the Terry Interest was never 

transferred to BCP 7 or any other entity, (iii) Plaintiff Terry is the sole and only owner of the 

Terry Interest. In addition to being against the NuVeda Defendants, it is also against Padgett and 

BCP 7. As a result, it is not solely among the Members of NuVeda and by its express terms, the 

dispute resolution clause in the NuVeda Operating Agreement requiring mediation and/or 

arbitration does not apply to this claim for relief. Thus, Terry’s claims, specifically including his 

claim for declaratory relief, are properly before the district court. 

Further, the Ninth Claim for Relief for Unjust Enrichment, the dismissal of which was 

previously denied, is further clarified by the new Twenty-First claim for relief as outlined below.  

As set forth above, and not to belabor the point regarding rescission, but should this Court order 
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rescission, and should this Court enter a declaratory judgment regarding the Terry Interest, Terry 

is certainly entitled to an accounting of the sale of the Defendants’ cannabis licenses from his 

partners.  Further, to the extent the NuVeda Defendants provided false information in state filings 

in transferring the Terry Interest directly to Bady and Mohajer without Terry’s consent, such 

conduct is expressly actionable under NRS 225.084. 

E. The NuVeda Defendants’ motion to dismiss Terry’s new claims for relief 

should be denied. 

The Second Amended Complaint joins CWNV LLC and CWNV1 LLC, the entities 

improperly formed by NuVeda and Bady to block the revival of CWNV, LLC and CWNV1, LLC 

expressly authorized by Judge Gonzalez, along with NuVeda, LLC’s successors, NuVeda LLC 

and UL NuVeda Holdings LLC.  As outlined above, it also includes three new claims for relief 

on behalf of Terry for conversion, unjust enrichment, and civil conspiracy. The new claims 

asserted by Terry are damage claims against NuVeda, its subsidiaries, Clark NMSD, Clark 

Natural, Nye Natural, their members, including Bady and Mohajer and their successors, including 

UL NuVeda, NuVeda Delaware, New CWNV and New CWNV1 as well as Padgett. The claims 

are not dependent upon setting aside the AAA  dismissal and a return of the Terry Interest to Terry 

in order to pursue such claims. In fact, they are alternative claims should Terry pursue damages 

instead of rescission to get the Terry Interest back. 

The damage claims asserted in the Twentieth, Twenty- 

First and Twenty-Second claims for relief relate primarily to actions by the NuVeda Defendants 

to cause non-payment under the Terry Purchase Agreement.  The claims are focused on actions 

by NuVeda and its cohorts regarding the wrongful transfer of the Terry Interest to  Bady and 

Mohajer.  For purposes of the pending motion, the facts are accepted as true that Terry did not 

discover the wrongful transfer of the Terry Interest until after the dismissal of the Arbitration.  

To the extent that Defendants’ wrongful conversion of the Terry Interest caused BCP 7 

and Padgett not to pay for the Terry Interest, then Terry has a valid claim for damages for that 

conversion. In Nevada, conversion is defined as “a distinct act of dominion wrongfully exerted 

over personal property in denial of, or inconsistent with, title or rights therein or in derogation, 
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exclusion or defiance of such rights. Dynamic Transit Co.  v. Trans Pac. Ventures, 128 Nev. 755, 

761, 291 P.3d 114, 118 (Nev. 2012), citing Edward Indus. V. DTE/BTE, Inc. 112 Nev. 1025, 

1031, 923 P.2d 569, 573 (1996). It’s certainly foreseeable that the wrongful taking of property 

might cause a buyer of that property not to pay the seller as agreed.  

Similarly, NuVeda, Clark NMSD, Clark Natural, Nye Natural, and their members, 

including Bady and Mohajer and their successors, including UL NuVeda, NuVeda Delaware, 

New CWNV and New CWNV1 have benefitted jointly and separately from the wrongful transfer 

of the Terry Interest to Bady and Mohajer, which caused Padgett not to pay Terry for the Terry 

Interest. In Asphalt Prods. Corp. v. All Star Ready Mix, 111 Nev. 799, 802, 898 P.2d 699, 701 

(1995) the district court properly held that the defendant therein, by using a tractor for ten weeks 

without making a payment, was unjustly enriched. Unjust enrichment is “the unjust retention . . . 

of money or property of another against the fundamental principles of justice or equity and good 

conscience. ‘“Id., citing, Topaz Mutual Co. v. Marsh, 108 Nev. 845, 856, 839 P.2d 606, 613 

(1992) (quoting Nevada Industrial Dev. v. Benedetti, 103 Nev. 360, 363 n.2, 741 P.2d 802, 804 

n.2 (1987)). Even if Terry’s claim to the Terry Interest was terminated by the Arbitration, the 

NuVeda Defendants cannot take that interest without fair compensation.  Defendants took and 

retained Terry’s property without his knowledge or consent. That then caused BCP 7 and Padgett 

not to pay Terry. Therefore, Terry has a damage claim against the Defendants for their unjust 

enrichment, which does not require a return of the Terry Interest to him. 

Finally, and perhaps most telling is the Twenty-Second Claim for Relief for Civil 

Conspiracy against Defendants NuVeda, UL NuVeda, NuVeda Delaware, Clark NMSD, Nye 

Natural, Clark Natural, Bady, Mohajer and their business partner, Padgett. An action for civil 

conspiracy accrues when a plaintiff discovers or should have discovered all of the necessary facts 

constituting a conspiracy claim. Siragusa v. Brown, 114 Nev. 1384, 1393, 971 P.2d 801, ___ 

(1998). Here, the claim for civil conspiracy did not accrue until Terry discovered the wrongful 

transfer of the Terry Interest to  Bady and Mohajer. 

An actionable civil conspiracy is a combination of two or more persons who, by some 

concerted action, intend to accomplish some unlawful objective for the purpose of harming 
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another which result in damage. Collins v. Union Fed. S&L Ass’n, 99 Nev. 284, 303, 662 P.2d 

610, 622 (1983). The alleged facts are set forth in the Second Amended Complaint and clearly  

evidence a conspiracy between the NuVeda Defendants and Padgett. The claim is one for 

damages resulting from the Defendants’ wrongful conduct, including punitive damages, and does 

not require that the Terry Interest be returned to Terry in order to pursue the proposed claim.  

In clandestine fashion, NuVeda, and its subsidiaries, Clark NMSD, Clark Natural and Nye 

Natural, acting in concert with Bady and Mohajer, transferred the Terry Interest to Bady and 

Mohajer without Terry’s knowledge or consent. Without knowledge that NuVeda, Clark NMSD, 

Clark Natural, Nye Natural, Bady and Mohajer had improperly transferred the Terry Interest to 

Bady and Mohajer, Terry entered into the Terry Purchase Agreement whereby Terry agreed to 

sell the Terry Interest to BCP 7, guaranteed by Padgett, for specified consideration and on specific 

terms. 

Then, in an email dated June 5, 2018, from Padgett to the arbitrator in the Arbitration, 

prior to Padgett paying any sums under the Terry Purchase Agreement, Padgett purported to 

dismiss “all claims of myself, CWNevada, BCP Holdings 7, LLC and Shane Terry (all right, title, 

and interest against Bady, Mohajer, and NuVeda and its subsidiaries (Clark NMSD, Clark Natural 

Medicinal Solutions, and Nye Natural Medicinal Solutions) with prejudice.” The Padgett email 

clearly evidences a conspiracy between he and his business partners, NuVeda, Clark NMSD, 

Clark Natural, Nye Natural, Bady and Mohajer to defraud Terry by having BCP 7 purportedly 

purchase the Terry Interest, which had already been transferred to Bady and Mohajer without 

Terry’s knowledge or consent, and then immediately attempt to dismiss the claims in the 

Arbitration without BCP 7 and Padgett paying the agreed consideration. 

/ / / 

  

APPENDIX 258



 

Page 23 of 23 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

IV. Conclusion 

Based on the foregoing, Plaintiff Shane Terry respectfully requests that Defendants’ 

Motion be denied. 

DATED this 17th day of November 2021 

MUSHKIN & COPPEDGE 

/s/L. Joe Coppedge    
MICHAEL R. MUSHKIN, ESQ. 
Nevada State Bar No. 2421 
L. JOE COPPEDGE, ESQ. 
Nevada State Bar No. 4954 
6070 S. Eastern Ave. Ste. 270 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Attorneys for Dotan Y. Melech, Receiver, 
Shane Terry, and Phillip D. Ivey 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Opposition to Motion to Dismiss and/or for 

Summary Judgment on Claims by Shane Terry Except Against BCP 7 Holdings, LLC and 

Brian Padgett was submitted electronically for filing and/or service with the Eighth Judicial 

District Court on this 17th day of November, 2021. Electronic service of the foregoing document 

shall be upon all parties listed on the Odyssey eFileNV service contact list. 

 

/s/Kimberly C. Yoder    
An Employee of  
MUSHKIN & COPPEDGE 
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Michael R. Mushkin, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 2421 
L. Joe Coppedge, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 4954 
MUSHKIN & COPPEDGE 
6070 S. Eastern Avenue, Suite 270 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89128 
Telephone: (702) 454-3333 
Fax: (702) 386-4979 
michael@mushlaw.com 
jcoppedge@mccnvlaw.com 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs,  
Dotan Y. Melech, Receiver,  
Shane Terry, and Phillip D. Ivey 
 

 
DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 

NUVEDA, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; and CWNEVADA LLC, a Nevada 
Limited Liability Company, 
 

Plaintiffs, 
 
v. 
 
4FRONT ADVISORS LLC, foreign limited 
liability company, DOES I through X and 
ROE ENTITIES, II through XX, inclusive, 
 

Defendants. 

 
Case No.: A-17-755479-B 
 
Consolidated With: A-19-791405-C,  
A-19-796300-B; A-20-817363-B and 
A-21-827473-W 
 
Dept. No.: XIII 
 
 

 
AND RELATED MATTERS 

 

 
DECLARATION OF SHANE M. TERRY IN SUPPORT OF OPPOSITION TO 

MOTION TO DISMISS AND/OR FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON CLAIMS BY 
SHANE TERRY EXCEPT AGAINST BCP 7 HOLDINGS, LLC AND BRIAN PADGETT 

 
SHANE M. TERRY, under penalty of perjury, states as follows: 

1. I have personal knowledge of the facts stated herein, except for those facts stated 

to be based upon information and belief. If called to do so, I would truthfully and competently 

testify to the facts stated herein, except those facts stated to be based upon information and belief. 
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2. I make this Declaration in support of the Opposition to Motion to Dismiss and/or 

for Summary Judgment on Claims by Shane Terry Except Against BCP 7 Holdings, LLC and 

Brian Padgett (the “Opposition”). 

3. On or about July 9, 2014, I entered into an Operating Agreement for NuVeda, LLC 

(the “NuVeda Operating Agreement”) with Pejman Bady (“Bady”), Pouya Mohajer (“Mohajer”) 

and Jennifer Goldstein (“Goldstein”) to apply for and operate marijuana dispensaries, cultivation 

and processing facilities for medical marijuana pursuant to licenses obtained from certain 

governmental divisions.  A true and correct copy of the NuVeda Operating Agreement is attached 

to the Opposition as Exhibit 2. 

4. The NuVeda Operating Agreement was also signed by Joseph Kennedy, John 

Penders and Ryan Winmill.  

5. Since July 2014, I understand and believe that NuVeda has been governed by the 

NuVeda Operating Agreement. 

6. The NuVeda Operating Agreement is governed by, construed and interpreted in 

accordance with Nevada law.  

7. Since NuVeda’s formation, I have been a manager, voting member and at times, 

NuVeda’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operations Officer.  

8. Initially, I owned 21.5% of NuVeda and its subsidiaries, Clark NMSD, Clark 

Natural, and Nye Natural. My ownership interest was later increased to 22.88%.  

9. During the month of December 2015, NuVeda’s annual license renewal paperwork 

was due to the State of Nevada. 

10. During this time, I was NuVeda’s designated and registered point of contact with 

the State of Nevada for all regulatory correspondence.  

11. After I submitted the renewal application representing NuVeda’s then current 

ownership structure, Bady falsely submitted documentation to the State of Nevada that removed 

me as NuVeda’s State of Nevada designated point of contact and refused to provide me with 

access to any records. 
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Acts of Self-Dealing and other Misconduct 

12. Bady, Mohajer and Kennedy, individually and at times through NuVeda or other 

entities, engaged in fraudulent acts of self-dealing and other acts of misconduct that constituted a 

breach of their legal duties.  

13. For example, I and other members of NuVeda learned that Bady misrepresented 

the source of funds he originally contributed to NuVeda in exchange for equity.  

14. Nevada law and the state regulatory agencies require in depth financial 

disclosures. 

15. While Bady averred that his funding came from the sale of a business, upon 

information and belief, Bady, in concert with Mohajer, in fact funded his contributions from 

money he acquired from his friend, Majid Golpa (“Golpa”).  

16. Upon information and belief, Bady and Mohajer then promised that in exchange 

for the funds, Golpa would receive a 5.5% membership interest in NuVeda, a pledge that was 

prohibited by Nevada law.  

17. Mohsen Bahri (“Bahri”) and Bady also negotiated the terms of a $500,000 

promissory note.  

18. Bady then made an undisclosed deal with Bahri to provide Bady with a $500,000 

investment in which Bahri would receive a 4% interest in NuVeda.  

19. This was contrary to NuVeda’s understanding of Bady’s financial contribution.  

20. Following discovery of the true nature of Bady and Mohajer’s wrongful side deals 

with third parties, a dispute arose between Goldstein and I on the one hand and Bady and Mohajer 

on the other hand regarding their clandestine and wrongful side deals, pursuant to which Bady 

and Mohajer attempted to allocate ownership interests to their friends, and the true source of 

Bady’s capital contribution, Golpa and Bahri.  

21. Bady and Mohajer were not authorized to pledge to Golpa or Bahri a 5.5% or 4% 

interest in NuVeda, yet Bady demanded that the members, including Goldstein and I, agree to 

ratify his apparent promises to provide such interest to Golpa and Bahri.  

22. Upon information and belief, the transfer of the interests, as proposed by Bady, 
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would jeopardize NuVeda’s licenses.  

23. On or about November 1, 2015, a monthly payment was due to Bahri on the 

$500,000 promissory note.  

24. Bady, a long-time personal friend with Bahri, instructed me to not pay the monthly 

payment and stated he “would take care of it.”  

25. On November 11, 2015, Bahri sent demand for the November 1, 2015 payment.   

26. Bady admitted he did not make the monthly payment, but that he and Bahri had 

agreed to extend the monthly payment to November 15, 2015.  

27. Bady’s non-payment of the Bahri loan and subsequent negotiations were done 

without my knowledge and jeopardized NuVeda’s operations.  

28. Bahri subsequently presented a lawsuit against Goldstein and I, individually, 

falsely alleging that we were liable for his investment through Bady.  

29. Bady and Bahri then acted in concert to allege that Goldstein and I were liable for 

the $500,000 promissory note, as neither NuVeda nor Bady, who single-handedly communicated 

with Bahri and who negotiated all terms of the clandestine deal with his friend Bahri, were named 

as defendants.  

30. Bady and Bahri acted in concert to paralyze Goldstein and I from obtaining the 

necessary funding by threatening to file frivolous and factually unfounded lawsuits against 

Goldstein and I for Bady’s strategic gain.  

31. Additionally, when Kennedy (an IRS enrolled agent) was preparing NuVeda’s K-

1s, Bady asked me to allocate his tax losses to Bady to offset Bady’s income from an unrelated 

medical business.  

32. I refused and explained to Bady that loss-shifting was wrongful and potentially 

constituted fraud, but Bady ignored my concern and collaborated with Mohajer to shift Mohajer’s 

losses to him instead.  

33. Bady and Mohajer then had nominal-member Kennedy amend the K-1s to reflect 

the loss-shifting to Bady in violation of the terms of the NuVeda Operating Agreement without 

notifying any other NuVeda members.  
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34. Goldstein and I made demands for the original K-1s and other financial documents 

for NuVeda, but Bady and Kennedy denied the records request in violation of my right to review 

the business records of NuVeda pursuant to Section 7.2 of the NuVeda Operating Agreement.  

35. I also discovered that Bady engaged in rampant self-dealing on multiple occasions. 

36. An entity known as 2 Prime, LLC (“2 Prime”) entered into a financing agreement 

with NuVeda.  

37. Bady exclusively negotiated the financing agreement with favorable terms to 2 

Prime. 

38. Thereafter, it was discovered after the fact that Bady had an undisclosed 50% 

interest in 2 Prime, which was also co-owned by Golpa.  

39. On or about November 20, 2015 under the guidance of NuVeda’s corporate 

counsel, who was hired directly by Bady, Bady’s and Mohajer’s NuVeda interests were 

terminated pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Operating Agreement.  

40. However, Bady and Mohajer disregarded the expulsion and claimed they remained 

voting members, managers, and officers with authority to act on behalf of NuVeda.  

41. Between November 20th, 2015 and December 3, 2015, Bady and Mohajer, acting 

as purported representatives of NuVeda, attempted to sell NuVeda’s interests in its highly 

valuable and privileged licenses to multiple parties, including CWNevada.  

The District Court Action 

42. Over concerns that any attempted and unauthorized transfer of interest could 

jeopardize NuVeda’s licenses, on December 3, 2015, Goldstein and I filed a complaint, as 

individuals and on behalf of NuVeda in the District Court for Clark County, Nevada against Bady 

and Mohajer as Case Number A-15-728510-B (the “District Court Action”) and 

contemporaneously filed a Motion for a Preliminary Injunction requesting that the Court enjoin 

any transfer of NuVeda’s membership interests.  

43. The District Court Action sought, among other things, the issuance of a 

preliminary and permanent injunction maintaining the status quo pending a final resolution of the 

parties’ disputes in an arbitration.  
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44. Although the District Court did not issue a preliminary injunction in the District 

Court Action, on January 13, 2016, the Court ordered (the “January 13, 2016 Order”), among 

other things, “IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that pending the 

completion of the contemplated arbitration, the parties are to take no further action to expulse 

each other on the factual bases presented to the Court during the evidentiary hearing.”  

45. Goldstein and I commenced a private arbitration proceeding with the American 

Arbitration Association against NuVeda, Bady and Mohajer captioned as Terry, et al. v. NuVeda 

LLC, et al., AAA Case No. 01-15-005-8574 (the “Arbitration”).  

46. Notwithstanding the express language of the January 13, 2016 Order, in a March 

10, 2016 meeting I attended, Bady called for a vote to expel me from NuVeda.  

47. Bady, Mohajer and Kennedy voted in favor of the motion to expel me in violation 

of the January 13, 2016 Order.  

48. The purported expulsion was further documented in a meeting on or about 

September 19, 2017, where the NuVeda Meeting Minutes indicate my interest in NuVeda was 

distributed to Bady and Mohajer in yet another act of blatant self-dealing.  

49. NuVeda, Bady and Mohajer transferred my individual interest in NuVeda directly 

to Bady and Mohajer without my consent. I did not learn of the transfer of my individual license 

interest in NuVeda to Bady and Mohajer until in or after January 2019. 

Purchase and Sale Agreement for Terry’s Ownership Interest in NuVeda and NuVeda-

Managed Licenses 

50. During the pendency of the District Court Action and Arbitration, on or about 

April 30, 2018, I entered into a “Purchase and Sale Agreement for Terry’s Ownership Interest in 

NuVeda and NuVeda-Managed Licenses” (the “Terry Purchase Agreement”) with BCP7 as the 

Buyer. A true and correct copy of the Terry Purchase Agreement is attached to the Opposition as 

Exhibit 3. 

51. Padgett personally guaranteed all payments and other performance obligations due 

under the Terry Purchase Agreement.  

52. The Terry Purchase Agreement provides, among other things, that I agreed to sell 
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the Terry Interest and BCP 7 agreed to purchase the Terry Interest for specified consideration and 

on specific terms.  

53. The total purchase price for BCP 7 to acquire the Terry Interest was $1.75 million 

(the “Purchase Price”), which was “substantially reduced” from fair market value.  

54. I was induced to sign the Terry Purchase Agreement in reliance upon Padgett’s 

representations that the Purchase Price would be paid. 

55. The Purchase Price was payable as follows: (i) an initial payment of $500,000.00 

in good and payable U.S. funds to be paid to Terry on or before June 15, 2018 (the “Initial 

Payment”), and (ii) monthly payments of the $1.25 million balance due on or before June 15, 

2018 with payments due monthly until paid in full (the “Monthly Payments”).  

56. The Monthly Payments were to be made on or before the first day of the month in 

an amount not less than the interest accrued on the outstanding balance at an interest rate of 18%.  

57. The Monthly Payments were to commence May 1, 2018, and the first payment 

was to have been made no later than May 2, 2018.  

58. The Terry Purchase Agreement further provided that there shall be acceleration of 

the outstanding balance and any unpaid accrued interest thereon upon (1) the sale or transfer of 

the Terry Interest to a vehicle not owned by BCP 7, or any beneficial rights thereunder, from BCP 

7 to a third party (other than CWNV, LLC); or (2) a default of a payment obligations, which shall 

result from any failure to timely pay the Initial Down Payment or any Monthly Payments on the 

Balance following notice of failure to Padgett and no cure within 10 business days thereof.  

59. Upon execution of the Terry Purchase Agreement and upon receipt of the first 

Monthly Payment, I agreed, among other things, to assign any and all claims and right in the 

Arbitration and District Court Action to BCP 7.  

60. BCP 7 made a partial payment toward the Initial Payment in the sum of 

$250,000.00 on or about August 1, 2018.  

61. In addition to the partial Initial Payment, BCP 7 made partial interest and extension 

payments.  

62. However, BCP 7 failed to pay the Initial Payment or Monthly Payments in full.  
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63. As a result of BCP 7’s failure to pay the Initial Payment or any of the Monthly 

Payments in full, I provided notice of and right to cure this failure to BCP 7 and Padgett.  

64. BCP 7 and Padgett failed to cure the outstanding balance owed following notice 

of such failure and a right to cure within 10 business days.  

65. As a result of BCP 7’s and Padgett’s failure to pay the Initial Payment and Monthly 

Payments in full, including the first Monthly Payment, there has not been a valid transfer of the 

Terry Interest to BCP 7.  

66. Notwithstanding the fact that the Terry Interest was never properly transferred to 

BCP 7, in an email dated June 5, 2018 from Padgett to the Arbitrator in the Arbitration, Padgett 

purported to dismiss “all claims of myself, CWNevada, BCP Holdings 7, LLC and Shane Terry 

(all right, title, and interest against Bady, Mohajer, and NuVeda and its subsidiaries (Clark 

NMSD, Clark Natural Medicinal Solutions, and Nye Natural Medicinal Solutions) with 

prejudice.” See electronic mail from Padgett to Nikki Baker, Exhibit 4 to the Opposition. 

67. Not only did CWNevada never make or assert any claims related to the Arbitration, 

the Padgett email clearly evidences a conspiracy between Padgett, NuVeda, Bady and Mohajer 

to defraud me by having BCP 7 purportedly purchase the Terry Interest, and then immediately 

attempt to dismiss the claims in the Arbitration without BCP 7 and Padgett paying the agreed 

consideration. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under that the foregoing is true and correct. 

DATED this 17th day of November, 2021 

 

/s/Shane M. Terry   
SHANE M. TERRY 
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MITCHELL D. STIPP, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 7531 
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP 
1180 N. Town Center Drive, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89144 
Telephone: 702.602.1242 
mstipp@stipplaw.com 
Attorneys for NuVeda, LLC, Clark NMSD, LLC, 
Nye Natural Medicinal Solutions, LLC, Clark Natural Medicinal Solutions, LLC, Dr. Pejman Bady,  
Dr. Pouya Mohajer, and Joseph Kennedy1 
 
 

IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 
 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK 
 
 

 
NUVEDA, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; and CWNEVADA LLC, a Nevada 
Limited Liability Company, 
 
   Plaintiffs, 
 
 v. 
 
4FRONT ADVISORS LLC, foreign limited liability 
company, DOES I through X and ROE ENTITIES, 
II through XX, inclusive, 
 
   Defendants. 
 
AND RELATED MATTERS. 
                         

 
Case:  A-17-755479-B 
 
Consolidated Cases:   
A-19-791405-C, A-19-796300-B, and A-20-817363-
B 
 
 
Dept. No.: 13 
 
 

REPLY TO SHANE TERRY’S OPPOSITION 
TO MOTION TO DISMISS AND/OR FOR 

SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON CLAIMS BY MR. 
TERRY EXCEPT AGAINST BCP 7 

HOLDINGS, LLC AND BRIAN PADGETT 
 

Hearing Date: December 6, 2021 
Hearing Time: 9:00 am 

 
 

 	
 

NuVeda, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company (“NuVeda”), Clark NMSD, LLC, a Nevada limited 

liability company (“Clark NMSD”), Nye Natural Medicinal Solutions, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company 

(“Nye Natural”), Clark Natural Medicinal Solutions, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company (“Clark 

Natural”), Dr. Pejman Bady (“Bady”), Dr. Pouya Mohajer (“Mohajer”), and Joseph Kennedy (“Kennedy”),2 by 

 
1 William Maupin has been engaged by NuVeda, LLC to assist with matters concerning Shane Terry.   Currently, Mr. 
Maupin serves as co-counsel in NuVeda’s petition for a writ before the Nevada Supreme Court in Case No. 82767. 
2 NuVeda, Clark NMSD, Nye Natural, Clark Natural, Bady, Mohajer, and Kennedy shall be referred to herein collectively 
as “Defendants.” 

Case Number: A-17-755479-B

Electronically Filed
11/29/2021 5:45 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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and through counsel of record, Mitchell Stipp, Esq., of the Law Office of Mitchell Stipp, hereby files the above-

referenced reply to the opposition filed by Shane Terry (“Mr. Terry”) to the motion to dismiss and/or for 

summary judgment.  The claims subject to the motion before the court are all claims and requests for relief by 

Mr. Terry against all defendants except BCP 7 Holdings, LLC (“BCP 7”) and Brian Padgett (“Mr. Padgett”). 

 

This filing is based on the papers and pleadings before the court, the memorandum of points and 

authorities that follows, and the exhibits attached hereto or filed separately and incorporated herein by this 

reference, which are true, accurate and complete. 

 

DATED this 29th day of November, 2021. 

 

LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    

 

/s/ Mitchell Stipp, Esq.      
MITCHELL STIPP, ESQ.      
Nevada Bar No. 7531       
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    
1180 N. Town Center Drive, Suite 100    
Las Vegas, Nevada 89144      
Telephone: 702.602.1242      
mstipp@stipplaw.com      
Attorneys for NuVeda, LLC, Clark NMSD, LLC, 
Nye Natural Medicinal Solutions, LLC, Clark Natural Medicinal Solutions, LLC, Dr. Pejman Bady,  
Dr. Pouya Mohajer, and Joseph Kennedy 
 
 

DECLARATION OF DR. PEJMAN BADY, DR. POUYA MOHAJER, AND JOSEPH KENNEDY 

 
 The undersigned, Dr. Pejman Bady, Dr. Pouya Mohajer, and Joseph Kennedy, individually and as 

authorized agents of NuVeda, Clark NMSD, Clark Natural, and Nye Natural, certify to the court as follows: 

1. The factual statements set forth in the reply below are true, accurate and complete to the best of 

my knowledge and belief. 

2. Mr. Terry sold all of his interests/claims in, to, and/or against Defendants (and any of their 

respective cannabis licenses) to BCP 7 on or about April 30, 2018.  At the time of the sale, Mr. Terry’s interest 

in NuVeda was extinguished based on his expulsion from NuVeda on or about March, 2016, pursuant to the APPENDIX 304
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terms and conditions of the Operating Agreement for NuVeda , which was in effect at the time. 

3. Mr. Terry’s claims were dismissed with prejudice by the American Arbitration Association in 

AAA Case No. 01-15-0005-8574 on or about October 9, 2018. 

4. On June 30, 2020, Mr. Terry sued the Defendants asserting claims based on the same or similar 

claims and allegations made by Mr. Terry in the arbitration (or which could have been asserted by Mr. Terry in 

the arbitration). 

5. We are informed and belief that Mr. Terry collected $757,757.00 from BCP 7, Mr. Padgett and 

their affiliates between April 18, 2019 and June 7, 2019. 

6. We submit the above-titled declaration in support of the motion to dismiss and/or for summary 

judgment which was filed on November 3, 2021. 

7. The exhibits filed in support of the motion are true, accurate and complete.     

 

Dated this 29th day of November, 2021. 

 

/s/ Pejman Bady 
_______________________________________ 
Dr. Pejman Bady 

 

/s/ Pouya Mohajer 
_______________________________________ 
Dr. Pouya Mohajer 

 

/s/ Joseph Kennedy 
_______________________________________ 
Joseph Kennedy 
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

 
I. The Declaration of Bady, Mohajer, and Kennedy satisfy the requirements of NRCP 56. 

  

Mr. Terry contends in his opposition that the declaration of Bady, Mohajer, and Kennedy does not satisfy 

the requirements of NRCP 56(c)(4).   Mr. Terry contends that the declaration fails to set forth specific facts that 

would be admissible evidence.  NRCP 56(c)(4) provides as follows: “An affidavit or declaration used to support 

or oppose a motion must be made on personal knowledge, set out facts that would be admissible in evidence, 

and show that the affiant or declarant is competent to testify on the matters stated.”   Bady, Mohajer, and 

Kennedy are the managers of NuVeda, which was a party to the lawsuit filed by Mr. Terry in 2015 (Case No. 

A-15-728510-B) and the proceedings before the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) (AAA Case No. 

01-15-0005-8574).  Bady, Mohajer, and Kennedy have personal knowledge of the transaction pursuant to which 

Mr. Terry sold his interest in and claims against NuVeda and its affiliates/subsidiaries to BCP 7.  After Mr. 

Terry entered into the transaction (which is a binding agreement with BCP 7 and Mr. Padgett), Mr. Terry through 

his counsel-of-record (Erika Pike Turner, Esq.) filed a motion in the arbitration to substitute BCP 7 in place of 

Mr. Terry as the real party in interest with all rights to Mr. Terry’s interest and claims.   The AAA permitted 

BCP 7 to substitute into the arbitration for Mr. Terry.   Before doing so, NuVeda through counsel, Mathew 

Dushoff, raised a number of issues with the transaction, which were addressed by Mr. Terry’s attorney (Ms. 

Turner).  After substituting into the case in place of Mr. Terry, on June 5, 2018, BCP 7 voluntarily and 

unconditionally dismissed all of Mr. Terry’s claims with prejudice.  In accordance with the request by BCP 7 to 

dismiss the claims with prejudice, AAA ordered these claims finally to be dismissed on October 9, 2018 

(approximately four (4) months later).    The foregoing undisputed facts are within the personal knowledge of 

Bady, Mohajer, and Kennedy as managers of NuVeda.  Mr. Terry’s issue appears to be with the understanding 

by Bady, Mohajer and Kennedy of the amounts paid by BCP 7/Mr. Padgett to Mr. Terry, which is based on the 

emails attached to the complaint filed in Case No. A-19-796300-B.  See Exhibit E to the Motion (Exhibit 2 to 

Exhibit E) (Defendant’s Exhibits, Pages 85-96).  Noteworthy, Mr. Terry still has not stated in the opposition or 

his declaration exactly how much money he received from BCP 7/Mr. Padgett.    APPENDIX 306
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In his opposition, Mr. Terry intentionally conflates two (2) separate issues in order to confuse the court: 

(a) rescinding the transaction with BCP 7/Mr. Padgett (contract rescission); and (b) setting aside the dismissal 

with prejudice in the arbitration (relief under NRCP 60).   There are genuine issues of material fact which will 

prevent summary judgment in favor of Mr. Terry on the issue of rescission.  “A party must rescind a contract 

within a reasonable time, but what constitutes a reasonable time depends upon the facts of a particular case and 

must be determined by the trier of fact." Mackintosh v. California Federal Savings & Loan Ass'n, 113 Nev. 393, 

403 (Nev. 1997) (citing Wall v. Foster Petroleum Corp., 791 P.2d 1148, 1151 (Colo.Ct.App. 1989) (emphasis 

added).   The effective date of the assignment of interests and claims is May 2, 2018.   Between May 2, 2018 

and May 15, 2019, Mr. Terry collected $757,757.00 before he filed his complaint to rescind the transaction on 

June 30, 2020 based on fraud in the inducement—more than two (2) years after the transaction was consummated 

and one (1) year after there was an uncured default.    NuVeda contends rescission on these facts is not 

reasonable.   However, contract rescission has nothing to do with setting aside the stipulation by BCP 7 

dismissing with prejudice all claims in the arbitration. 

 

With respect to setting aside the dismissal with prejudice before AAA, there are no genuine issues of 

material fact.  Mr. Terry contends that the rescission of the contract with BCP7/Mr. Padgett automatically makes 

the dismissal void.   That is false.  As this court is keenly aware, "[f]or a judgment to be void, there must be a 

defect in the court's authority to enter judgment through either lack of personal jurisdiction or jurisdiction over 

subject matter in the suit." Gassett v. Snappy Car Rental, 111 Nev. 1416, 1419, 906 P,2d 258, 261 (1995), 

superseded by rule on other grounds, NRCP 12(b), as stated in Fritz Hansen A/S v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 

116 Nev. 650, 654-56, 6 P.3d 982, 984-85 (2000); see Landreth v. Malik, 127 Nev. 175, 179, 251 P.3d 163, 166 

(2011) ("[I]f the district court lacks subject matter jurisdiction, the judgment is rendered void.").  Here, there is 

no dispute AAA had jurisdiction to dismiss Mr. Terry’s claims at the request of BCP 7, which owned them, after 

Mr. Terry filed a motion to substitute BCP 7 in place and stead of Mr. Terry.  While Mr. Terry can pursue 

rescission of the transaction with BCP 7/Mr. Padgett based on fraud in the inducement, he does so at his own 

detriment. APPENDIX 307
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II. The Operating Agreement of NuVeda does not create Standing for Mr. Terry to pursue 

claims which were dismissed. 

 

The claims by Mr. Terry should be dismissed or summary judgment granted.  The claims asserted by 

Mr. Terry in Case No.  A-20-817363-B were owned by BCP 7 (before they were dismissed).  The transaction 

has not been rescinded.   Therefore, Mr. Terry does not have standing to prosecute them or assert additional 

claims based on the claims and interests sold to BCP 7.   Even if the transaction with BCP 7 could be rescinded 

after a trial on merits, all such claims are res judicata (barred by claim preclusion).   The binding arbitration is 

closed, and AAA no longer has jurisdiction.  Weddell v. Sharp, 350 P.3d 80, 86 (Nev. 2015) (modifying Five 

Star Capital Corp. v. Ruby, 194 P.3d 709, 713 (Nev. 2008)).    In response, Mr. Terry argues that provisions of 

the operating agreement of NuVeda, which purportedly existed at the time of the dismissal now provide this 

court the power and authority to decide whether the stipulation entered by AAA should be set aside.   While 

BCP 7 as the real party in interest could move to set aside the dismissal, or Mr. Terry could move this court after 

rescission of the contract with BCP7/Mr. Padgett, the provisions of NuVeda’s operating agreement do not 

change result.   Assuming NRCP 60(b) does not apply, a party only has ninety (90) days after the award to move 

to vacate the arbitrator’s decision.  See NRS 38.241(1)(a) and (2).  In either case, Mr. Terry is out-of-time. 

 

III. The claims by Mr. Terry do not need to be the same exact claims asserted in the 

Arbitration. 

Mr. Terry’s contention that the arbitration concerned solely his attempt to stop the joint venture between 

CWNevada the NuVeda is a complete distortion of the facts.  In Case No. A-15-728510-B, Judge Gonzalez 

determined after an evidentiary hearing that Mr. Terry did not have the right to stop the joint venture and that 

decision was upheld by the Nevada Supreme Court on appeal by Mr. Terry.  See Order filed on October 13, 

2017, in Case No, 69649 (Dkt. 17-35048); see also Mr. Terry’s Arbitration Demands included in Exhibit A-2 

and Exhibit A-3 to the Motion.    Despite making this argument, Mr. Terry does admit the following: 

 APPENDIX 308
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 Terry’s claims in this action generally involve his efforts to rightfully regard his 
interest in NuVeda and its subsidiaries after entering the Terry Purchase 
Agreement.  In the alternative, Terry’s claims in this action include damage claims 
related to non-payment under the Terry Purchase Agreement. 

 
See Opposition, filed on November 17, 2021, page 16 (line 28) through page 17 (lines 1-3).  Mr. Terry appears 

to confuse the difference between issue and claim preclusion.  Generally, the doctrine of res judicata precludes 

parties or those in privity with them from relitigating a cause of action or an issue which has been finally 

determined by a court of competent jurisdiction." Univ. of Nev. v. Tarkanian,110 Nev. 581, 598, 879 P.2d 1180, 

1191 (1994), holding modified on other grounds by Exec. Mgmt., Ltd. v. Ticor Title Ins. Co.,114 Nev. 823, 963 

P.2d 465 (1998). "The doctrine is intended to prevent multiple litigation causing vexation and expense to the 

parties and wasted judicial resources by precluding parties from relitigating issues they could have raised in a 

prior action concerning the same controversy." Id. While issue preclusion is implicated when the parties to an 

earlier suit are involved in a subsequent litigation on a different claim, claim preclusion applies when "[a] valid 

and final judgment on a claim precludes a second action on that claim or any part of it." Id. at 598-99, 879 P.2d 

at 1191, In Five Star Capital Corp. v. Ruby, we adopted a three-part test for claim preclusion: "(1) the parties or 

their privies are the same, (2) the final judgment is valid, and (3) the subsequent action is based on the same 

claims or any part of them that were or could have been brought in the first case." 124 Nev. 1048, 1054, 194 

P.3d 709, 713 (2008) (emphasis added) (footnotes omitted), holding modified by Weddell v. Sharp,131 Nev. 

233, 350 P.3d 80 (2015).     

 

IV. The decisions by Judge Gonzalez on NuVeda’s motions to dismiss/summary judgment 

were made without prejudice. 

 

The matters before the court are ripe for decision.    Discovery is ending.  The deadline for filing 

dispositive motions is fast approaching.   In his opposition, Mr. Terry has not asked for relief under NRCP 56(d).  

Since filing his complaint and amending the same, Mr. Terry has done nothing to demonstrate why this matter 

should not be finally decided.  Each filing by Mr. Terry is recycled with the same facts and analysis.  “The 

premise of a ‘summary judgment’ motion is that there is nothing for a jury or judge to decide at trial, and 

therefore the court should enter judgment as a matter of law without a trial.” Wood v. Safeway, Inc., 121 Nev. 
APPENDIX 309
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724, 729, 121 P.3d 1026, 1029 (2005).  What remains for a jury to decide with respect to Mr. Terry’s claims?   

Mr. Terry contends NRCP 60(b)(4) permits the court to set aside the dismissal in arbitration because it is void.  

That is a question of law, which can be decided by the court.  Further, NRCP 60(b)(3) relief must be made within 

six (6) months, and if the Uniform Arbitration Act of 2000 applies, Mr. Terry only has ninety (90) days (rather 

than six (6) months).  See NRS 38.241(1)(a) and (2).    There is no dispute that the maximum time period to set 

aside the dismissal for fraud has expired (i.e., there is no genuine issue of material fact).   

 

V. Mr. Terry’s new claims are subject to dismissal/summary judgment. 

Mr. Terry’s new claims of conversion, unjust enrichment and civil conspiracy are based on the same set 

of facts as the prior claims.  Mr. Terry filed a seconded amended complaint on October 18, 2021.3  Mr. Terry 

asserts duplicate claims for unjust enrichment based on his interest/claims sold to BCP 7.  See Second Amended 

Complaint, pages 28-29 (paragraph 230) and 41-42 (paragraph 324).  Mr. Terry asserts a claim for conversion 

of his interest sold to BCP 7.  Id. at 40-41 (paragraph 317).  Finally, Mr. Terry asserts a claim for civil conspiracy 

based on the transfer of Mr. Terry’s interest/claims purportedly before he sold the same to BCP 7.  Id. at 42-43.   

These claims are based on the interests/claims sold to BCP 7 and dismissed.   The fact that Mr. Terry now claims 

he did not learn of the transfer of his interests until after January 2019 (paragraph 82 of the Second Amended 

Complaint) is inconsistent with the facts as alleged by Mr. Terry in the arbitration and does not prevent the claim 

from being dismissed.   Mr. Terry sold whatever he had to BCP 7 and expressly permitted BCP 7 to substitute 

into the case and do whatever BCP 7 wanted as the real party in interest.    

 

VI. Mr. Terry does not address the applicability of the 5-year Rule. 

Mr. Terry does not address the motion’s contention that the 5-year rule also requires dismissal.  The 

failure of the opposing party to address grounds upon which the motion should be granted may be construed as 

an admission by Mr. Terry that the contention is meritorious and a consent to granting the same. EDCR 2.20(b); 

 
3 In response to NuVeda’s opposition to the motion to amend, this court indicated that it would address the substantive 
issues in a motion to dismiss/summary judgment because the standard for amending is low under NRCP 15. 
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see also State, Dep't of Mtr. Vehicles v. Moss, 106 Nev. 866, 868 n.2 (Nev. 1990).  If contract rescission occurs 

and the dismissal with prejudice is also set aside, the case is still subject to dismissal with prejudice under NRCP 

41(e)(2)(B) (5-Year Rule).   See NRCP 41(e)(6); Morgan v. Las Vegas Sands, Inc., 118 Nev. 315 (Nev. 2002) 

(arbitration does not toll the 5-year rule—dismissal is mandatory).   Mr. Terry does not get the right to restart 

the clock by filing a new case.  Accordingly, the claims by Mr. Terry should be dismissed or summary judgment 

granted.   

 

VII. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons set forth above, Defendants respectfully request that the court dismiss and/or grant summary 

judgment on all claims and requests for relief by Mr. Terry against all defendants except BCP 7 and Brian Mr. 

Padgett. 

DATED this 29th day of November, 2021. 

LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    

 

/s/ Mitchell Stipp, Esq.      
MITCHELL STIPP, ESQ.      
Nevada Bar No. 7531       
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    
1180 N. Town Center Drive, Suite 100    
Las Vegas, Nevada 89144      
Telephone: 702.602.1242      
mstipp@stipplaw.com      
Attorneys for NuVeda, LLC, Clark NMSD, LLC, 
Nye Natural Medicinal Solutions, LLC, Clark Natural Medicinal Solutions, LLC, Dr. Pejman Bady,  
Dr. Pouya Mohajer, and Joseph Kennedy 
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DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
 
Other Business Court Matters COURT MINUTES December 06, 2021 
 
A-17-755479-B Nuveda LLC, Plaintiff(s) 

vs. 
4Front Advisors LLC, Defendant(s) 

 
December 06, 2021 9:00 AM All Pending Motions  
 
HEARD BY: Denton, Mark R.  COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 03D 
 
COURT CLERK: Madalyn Kearney 
 
RECORDER: Jennifer Gerold 
 
PARTIES  
PRESENT: 

 
Stipp, Mitchell D. Attorney for Defendants NuVeda 

LLC, Clark NMSD LLC, Clark 
Natural Medical Solutions LLC, 
Pouya Mahjer, and Joseph 
Kennedy 

 

 
JOURNAL ENTRIES 

 
STATUS CHECK: TRIAL SETTING...MOTION TO DISMISS AND/OR FOR SUMMARY 
JUDGMENT ON CLAIMS BY SHANE TERRY EXCEPT AGAINST BCP HOLDINGS, LLC AND 
BRIAN PADGETT  
 
Linvel Coppedge, Esq. present for CWNevada LLC, Phillip Ivey, Shane Terry, and Dotan Melach. 
Counsel present via BlueJeans.  
 
As to the Status Check, Mr. Stipp advised Mr. Coppedge filed a Motion to Extend Discovery 
Deadlines for 60 days, the Court approved that request, and there has been no update since. Mr. 
Stipp added they are still conducting discovery and are in the process of filing dispositive motions. 
Court noted the trial stack that the case is currently set on is Non-Jury. COURT ORDERED, trial dates 
VACATED and to be RESET on the April 12, 2022 stack. Following arguments by Mr. Stipp and Mr. 
Coppedge, COURT FURTHER ORDERED, Motion to Dismiss and/or for Summary Judgment on 
Claims by Shane Terry Except Against BCP 7 Holdings, LLC and Brian Padgett UNDER 
ADVISEMENT. 
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DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
 
Other Business Court Matters COURT MINUTES December 21, 2021 
 
A-17-755479-B Nuveda LLC, Plaintiff(s) 

vs. 
4Front Advisors LLC, Defendant(s) 

 
December 21, 2021 7:00 AM Minute Order  
 
HEARD BY: Denton, Mark R.  COURTROOM: Chambers 
 
COURT CLERK: Madalyn Kearney 
 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 
 
HAVING further reviewed and considered the parties  filings and argument of counsel pertaining to 
Plaintiff NuVeda, LLC s  Motion to Dismiss and/or for Summary Judgment on Claims by Shane 
Terry Except Against BCP7 Holdings, LLC and Brian Padgett,  heard and taken under advisement on 
December 6, 2021, and being fully advised in the premises, and being persuaded by the Opposition 
thereto, the Court DENIES the dismissal aspect of such Motion and also DENIES the summary 
judgment aspect of the same without prejudice to renewal as to the latter after the Nevada Supreme 
Court has ruled upon Plaintiff s pending writ petition.  Counsel for the opposing parties is directed to 
submit a proposed order consistent herewith and with supportive briefing/argument following 
submission of the same to opposing counsel for signification of approval/disapproval. 
 
IT IS SO ORDERED. 
 
CLERK'S NOTE: This Minute Order was electronically served by Courtroom Clerk, Madalyn 
Kearney, to all registered parties for Odyssey File & Serve. /mk 12/21/21 
 
 

Case Number: A-17-755479-B

ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
12/21/2021 3:53 PM
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